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N O T I C E 
 
NOTICE is hereby given that the Eighty-Fifth Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd. will be held on Thursday, 
30th September, 2021 at 11.00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 
Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai– 400-
021, to transact the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021 together with the Reports 
of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 00338087) who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 
3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 and 142 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
3(7) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 
force), M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants  (Firm 
Registration No : FRN 107122W/W100672 be and are hereby appointed as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 
this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Ninetieth Annual 
General Meeting of the Company on a remuneration of Rs. 1,60,000/- 
(Rupees One Lakh Sixty Thousand only) plus taxes thereon and 
reimbursement of actual/out of pocket expenses that may be incurred by 
the auditors in the performance of their duty as auditors of the Company.’’ 
 

By the Order of the Board of Directors 
For The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd. 

 
 

Bhushan Koli 
Company Secretary 

(ACS : 43627) 
 

Mumbai:  31st August, 2021 

 

Note: This Notice has been issued pursuant to the authority conferred on the 
Company Secretary by the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held 
on 22nd June, 2021. 



 
 

 
NOTES: 
 
1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 

Act) and Regulation 42 of the Listing Regulations, the Register of Members 
and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 
Tuesday, 21st September, 2021 to Thursday, 30th September, 2021 (both 
days inclusive). 
 

2. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER 
ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF, 
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  

 

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members up to and not exceeding 
fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a 
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other 
member.   

 

3. The Proxy Forms in order to be valid and effective should be deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company not less than Forty-eight (48) hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 

4. The Company is maintaining, inter-alia, the following statutory registers at 
its registered office at Nariman Point, Mumbai-400-021 : 

 
(a) Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors of the 

Company are interested under Section 189 of the Act and 
 

(b) Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
Shareholdings in the Company under Section 170 of the Act. 

 
The said Registers are open for inspection by the members at the 
registered office of the Company during business hours on all working 
days till the date of the annual general meeting and will remain open for 
inspection to any member during the continuance of the meeting. 

 

5. Brief details of a Director who is seeking re-appointment are annexed hereto 
as per the requirements of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and as per the provisions 
of the Act. 
 

6. Disclosures in respect appointment of a Statutory Auditor of the Company 
are annexed hereto as per the requirements of Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI 



(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

7. Members are requested to notify the change in their address, if any, to the 
Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Bigshare Services 
Pvt. Ltd. immediately. 

 

8. Corporate members are requested to send in advance, a duly certified true 
copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attorney authorizing their 
representative to attend the AGM. 

 

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the 
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 
the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 
therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding, shares 
in physical format can submit their PAN Card details to the Company or 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at their email id: investor@bigshareonline.com. 

 

10. The Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 has prescribed a new format of Register of 
Members to be maintained in Form MGT-1 which requires the Company / 
RTA to record additional details of shareholders such as PAN, Email 
address, Bank Details for payment of dividend, UID Aadhaar No., 
Nomination Details etc. A Form for recording such additional details is 
available on the website of the Company.  Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to download the Form and submit the duly 
completed form to the Company or Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their 
respective Depository Participants. 

 
11. To receive shareholders’ communication through electronic means, 

including annual reports and notices, members are requested to kindly 
register/update their e-mail address with their respective Depository 
Participants, where shares are held in electronic form. If, however, shares 
are held in physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail 
address with Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at their e-mail id: 
investor@bigshareonline.com. 

 

Members, Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring 
to the Meeting, the attendance slip enclosed herewith, duly completed and 
signed mentioning therein details of their DP ID and Client ID/Folio No. 
They are also requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the 
meeting. 
 

12. In line with the Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Notice calling the AGM has been 
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.hhclbajaj.com. The 
Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on 

mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com.
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com.
http://www.hhclbajaj.com.
http://www.bseindia.com


the website of CDSL (the agency appointed by the Company for providing 
the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. 
www.evotingindia.com. 

 
13. Having regard to the exigent circumstances and Circular No. 40-3/2020-

DM-1(A) dated 29th August 2020 issued by the Ministry of Home Affairs, 
Government of India, all attendees to the Meeting shall be required to 
comply with the National Directives for COVID-19 and the guidelines 
stipulated in the aforesaid Circular or any amendment thereto or updation 
thereof, including but not limited to, mandatory wearing of face 
covering/face mask, undergoing thermal screening, hand washing or 
sanitizing and maintaining social distancing norms (minimum of 6 feet) at 
the meeting. The Company will comply with, all and singular, the 
aforesaid guidelines for conducting a physical meeting of the members.   

 
14. In terms of Sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read together with the Rules 

made thereunder, the listed companies may send the notice of annual 
general meeting and the annual report, including Financial Statements, 
Board Report etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of 
the Act read with MCA Circulars, SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020 and 
15th January, 2021, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for 
the FY 2020-2021 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report for the FY 2020-2021 will also be available on the Company’s 
website at www.hhclbajaj.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Ltd. 
at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at  
www.bigshareonline.com. 

 
15. Voting through Electronic Means 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014  as amended (hereinafter called “the Rules” 
for the purpose of this Section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015 the Company is providing facility to exercise 
votes on the items of business given in the Notice through remote 
electronic voting system to members holding shares as on 23rd September, 
2021 (End of Day) being the Cut-off date (Record Date for the purpose of 
Rule 20 (2) (ii) of the Rules) fixed for determining the voting rights of 
members, entitled to participate in the remote e-voting process, through 
the e-voting platform provided by Central Depository Services Ltd. 
(CDSL). For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement 
with CDSL for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized e-Voting agency.  

  

http://www.evotingindia.com.
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The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:- 
 

(i) The voting period begins on 27th September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on 
29th September, 2021 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the 
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 
form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 23rd September, 2021, may cast 
their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 
for voting thereafter. 

 
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not 

be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 
 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
9th December, 2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has 
been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing 
e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on 
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders.  

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a 
public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the 
individual demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository 
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote 
without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only 
facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 
facility. 

 
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining 
virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat 
mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
 



Type of 
shareholders Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users to 
login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select 
New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegi
stration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-
Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page or 
click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The 
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on 
registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, 
please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegi
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
https://eservices.nsdl.com


Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js
p  

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login 
through their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered 
with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful 
login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned website. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for 
any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor 
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43. 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in 
login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or 
call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 
22 44 30   

 
(v) Login method for e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders 

other than individual holding in Demat form. 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website 
www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio 

Number registered with the Company. 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to 

www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders 

holding shares in Demat. 
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 
 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact 
Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company 
records in order to login. 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evotingindia.com.
http://www.evotingindia.com


 OR Date 
of Birth 
(DOB) 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the 

Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in 
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are 
required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat 
holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are 
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used 
only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd. 
 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and 

against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES 
or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire 

Resolution details. 
 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on 
“SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be 

allowed to modify your vote. 
 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to 
print” option on the Voting page. 
 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the 
User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –
For Remote Voting only. 

 



 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 
and Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and 
register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the 
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created 
using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able 
to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they 
would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) 
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be 
uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 
same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the 
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 
swati@swatinerurkar.com and bhushan@bajajgroup.net.in, if they have 
voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting 
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
Process for those Shareholders whose email/mobile no. are not registered with 
the Company/Depositories. 
 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., 
Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and 
back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email 
id. 

 
2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with 

your respective Depository Participant (DP)  
 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile 
no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory 
while e-Voting through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the 
CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be 
addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 

http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:swati@swatinerurkar.com
mailto:bhushan@bajajgroup.net.in
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Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

For members who wish to vote using Ballot Form: 

Members may fill in the Ballot Forms (in lieu of remote E-voting), enclosed with 
the Notice and submit the same in a sealed envelope to the Scrutinizer, M/s Swati 
Nerurkar & Co., Company Secretaries, (ACS No. 18110 CP No. 8193), C/o 
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., 1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant 
Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai- 400-059 or to her email: 
swati@swatinerurkar.com, so as to reach by  5.00 p.m. on  29th  September, 2021. 
Ballot Forms received thereafter will strictly be treated as if not received. Unsigned, 
incomplete, or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision of 
the Scrutinizer on the validity of the forms will be final. 

In the event, a member casts his votes through both the processes i.e. remote E-
voting and Ballot Form, the votes in the electronic system would be considered 
and the Ballot Form would be ignored. 
 
General Instructions:- 
 

(1) The Company has appointed M/s Swati Nerurkar & Co., Company 
Secretaries, (ACS No. 18110, CP No. 8193), having address as A/803, Trishla 
Tower, Ram Mandir Road, Vazira Naka, Borivali (West), Mumbai- 400-092 as 
the Scrutinizer to the e-voting process, (including voting through Ballot Form 
received from the Members), to scrutinize the same in a fair and transparent 
manner. 

 

(2) The Scrutinizer shall, after the closure of remote E-voting period, unlock the 
votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses, not in the employment of 
the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or 
against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company. 

 

(3) In the event of a poll, please note that the members who have exercised their 
right to vote by electronic means/through ballot form as above shall not be 
eligible to vote by way of poll at the Meeting. The poll process shall be 
conducted and report thereon will be prepared in accordance with Section 
109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules. In such an event, 
votes cast under Poll taken together with the votes cast through e-voting and 
using ballot form shall be counted for the purpose of passing of resolution(s). 

(4) The members who have not exercised their right to vote through remote E-
voting, and have not submitted Ballot Forms (in lieu of E-voting) so as to reach 
the Scrutinizer before 5.00 p.m. on 29th September, 2021, will be given Ballot 
papers to cast their vote at the venue of the AGM. 

 

(5) The Scrutinizer shall submit her report to the Chairman, who shall declare the 
result of the voting. The results declared along with the Scrutinizers’ Report 
shall be placed on the Company’s website www.hhclbajaj.com and on the 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:swati@swatinerurkar.com,
http://www.hhclbajaj.com


website of Bigshare - www.bigshareonline.com within two days of the 
passing of the resolutions at the 85th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
and shall also be communicated to BSE Ltd. 

 
 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 

Brief Resume of Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General 
Meeting pursuant to the Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and provisions of the Companies 
act, 2013 
 
Item No. 2 of the Notice – Re-appointment of the Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 
00338087) 
 
As regards to the re-appointment of Nikhil Tarkas referred to in Item No. 2 of the 
Notice, following necessary disclosures are made for the information of the 
members: 
 
Information about the appointee: 
 
Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 00338087) 
 
Brief Resume:  
 
Nikhil Tarkas is a Commerce graduate from Mumbai University He is an 
Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi. 
 
He is presently working as the Company Secretary of Bajaj Sevashram Private 
Limited. 
 
Nature of expertise in specific functional areas: 
 
He has more than 45 years of corporate experience in handling and looking after 
the secretarial, legal and taxation of several companies. 
 
He is director in several private companies. He is also associated with an 
educational and a charitable institution. 
 
The Board is of the opinion that the said Director possesses requisite skills, 
experience and knowledge relevant to the Company’s business and it would be 
of immense benefit to the Company to continue to have his association with the 
Company as a Director of the Company. 
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Other Information about the appointee: 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 20th May, 2019, had appointed 
Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 00338087) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Non-
Independent) of the Company with effect from 3rd February, 2020. His 
appointment as a Non-Executive Non-Independent Director was approved by the 
members at the Eighty-Fourth AGM of the Company held on 30th September, 
2020 and the period of his office is liable to determination by retirement by 
rotation.  
 
Pursuant to SEBI Direction dated 14th June, 2018 to the Stock Exchange and based 
on the declaration received from him, Nikhil Tarkas is not debarred from being 
appointed as a director of the Company by virtue of any order passed by SEBI / 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory or regulatory authority. 
 
Except for payment of sitting fees, he did not receive any other remuneration 
from the Company during the FY 2019-2020. He will be eligible for payment of 
sitting fees as payable to other non-executive directors of the Company for 
attending the meetings of the Board or any Committees thereof from time to time, 
in accordance with the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
Other Directorships: 
 

1. Catalyst Finance Pvt. Ltd. 
2. Primus Investment and Finance Pvt. Ltd. 
3. Rapidkart Online Pvt. Ltd. 
4. Simply Cheqit Pvt. Ltd. 
5. Lazytech Online Pvt. Ltd. 
6. Applied Optical Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

 
Committee Chairmanships: Nil 
 
Committee Memberships:  
 

 Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
 

Shareholding in the Company: He does not hold any equity shares of the 
Company as on date. 
 
He is not related to any of the directors or key managerial personnel of the 
Company. 
 
None of the directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives, except 
Nikhil Tarkas, is directly or indirectly concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise in the said resolution except to the extent of their respective 
shareholdings, if any, in the Company. 



 
The Board commends the ordinary resolution set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice 
for approval by the shareholders. 
 
Item No. 3 of the Notice 
 
Appointment of M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company 
 
The current auditors, viz. M/s K.K. Mankeshwar & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 106009W) were re-appointed for a Second term by the 
members at the 80th (Eightieth) Annual General Meeting held on 2nd September, 
2016 to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive years until the conclusion of this 
85th (Eighty Fifth) Annual General Meeting. 
 
As per the provisions of the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, no listed 
company shall appoint an audit firm as auditors for more than two terms of five 
consecutive years. Hence, on completing the second term at the conclusion of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting, the Company cannot re-appoint the current 
auditor viz. M/s K.K. Mankeshwar & Co. 
 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 22nd June, 2021, based on the 
recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: FRN 107122W/W100672) as 
the statutory auditors of the Company subject to the approval by the members at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have consented to the said 
appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the 
limits specified under section 141(3) (g) of the Act and that they are not 
disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditors in terms of section 143 of the 
Act. 
 
M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants will be appointed as the 
statutory auditors of the Company for a first term of 5 consecutive years from the 
conclusion of  85th  (Eighty  Fifth) Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 
90th (Ninetieth) Annual General Meeting. 
 
Disclosures required pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are given below:  
 
Sl. 
No.  

Disclosure 
Requirements Compliance Status 

1 Proposed Fees 
payable to the 
statutory auditor(s). 

1. Statutory Audit Fee: Rs. 1,60,000/- (excluding 
GST) 
2. Quarterly Limited Review Fee: Rs. 47,400 



(excluding GST) and 
3. Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses. 

2 Terms of 
Appointment 

M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants  (Firm Registration No : FRN 
107122W/W100672) to be and are hereby 
recommended for appointment, for the first term of 
five consecutive years, as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 
90th Annual General Meeting of the Company  

3 In case of a new 
Auditor, material 
change in the fee 
payable to such 
auditor from that 
paid to the outgoing 
auditor along with 
the rationale for 
such change 

No change in the fee for the proposed auditors from 
that paid to the outgoing auditor. 

4 Basis of 
recommendation for 
appointment 

The recommendations are based on the fulfilment of 
the eligibility criteria prescribed in the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP has handled various 
audit assignments both in the public and private 
sectors. M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP is handling 
various assignments in the field of direct and 
indirect taxes (Income tax, wealth tax, Excise, 
Service Tax and Value Added Tax) 
Areas of Specialisation:  
• Statutory Audit, Tax Audit, GST Audit and 
Transfer Pricing Audit  
• Internal Audit, Concurrent Audit and compliance 
audit  
• Inspections of regulated entities on behalf of 
regulators  
• GST and Income-tax consulting and compliance  
• Cash Flow and physical progress monitoring of 
projected funded by Banks  
• Forensic Audit and special audit of stocks and 
receivables  
• Merger, Amalgamation and Valuation  
• Management Consultancy, due diligence review  
• Corporate Taxation and Cross Border Taxation  
• Personal Taxation 



5 Details in relation to 
and credentials of 
the statutory 
auditor(s) proposed 
to be appointed 

M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants  (Firm Registration No : FRN 
107122W/W100672), formed in 1927, having its 
Head Office at Barodawala Mansion, B-wing, 3rd 
Floor, 81, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 
400 018 and has various branch offices across the 
Country. 
The Firm is having a team consisting of 40 
Chartered Accountants, 50 Article Assistants and 80 
others staff (excluding partners and support staff). 

 
 
 
 

By the Order of the Board of Directors 
For The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd. 

 
 
 
 

Bhushan Koli 
Company Secretary 

(ACS : 43627) 
Mumbai:  31st August, 2021 

 

Note: This Notice has been issued pursuant to the authority conferred on the 
Company Secretary by the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held 
on 22nd June, 2021. 

 



 
 

 
 

Directors’ Report 
 

Your Directors present the Eighty-Fifth Annual Report and Audited Financial 
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021. 
 
1. Financial Results:  

(Amount in Lakhs) 

 
2. Dividend: 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company do not recommend payment of 
any dividend on Equity Shares of the Company for the Financial Year 
ended on 31st March, 2021. 
 

3. Transfer to Reserves: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has transferred Rs. 418.50 Lakhs 
tothe Reserves for the year under review. 
 

4. Operations of the Company: 
 

The Company is engaged in the business of providing administrative and 
 allied services to Bajaj Group Entities only. 
 

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during    
the year. 

Particulars FY 2020-2021 FY 2019-2020 

Revenue from Operations & Other 
Income 502.09  549.60  

Gross Profit before Finance Cost & 
Depreciation 

203.02 
                    238.44  

Less : Finance Cost 7.79                          9.12  
Less : Depreciation 35.06                       35.45  
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 160.17                    193.87  
Less: Provision for Tax Expenses 48.63 31.11 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 111.54                    162.76  
Add : Other Comprehensive 
Income 979.82                   (628.48)  

Add: Balance in Profit & Loss 
Account 1876.46  2342.17  

Balance available for Appropriation 2967.82  1876.46 
Amount transferred to General 
Reserve 418.50 0  

Earnings Per Share – Basic & 
Diluted 460.92                      672.56 



 
 

 
 

 
The global outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic is still 
continuing and the Board of Directors is monitoring the developments 
very closely. The safety and well-being of the employees has been the 
overriding priority. All the employees were advised to strictly follow the 
guidelines issued by the Central and State Government as well as the 
Local Municipalities while attending office during this pandemic.  
 
There was no material adverse impact on the operations of the Company 
for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 due to the disruption of 
the economic and business activities caused by the Coronavirus (Covid-
19) pandemic. 
 
The situation is still evolving and the Company will be focusing on 
profitability over growth seeking to conserve cash, strengthening 
collections and reducing overheads. 
 

5. Share Capital: 
 

The paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 6,08,645/- as 
on 31st March, 2021. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus issue 
or preferential issue etc. during the year. The Company has not issued 
any shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it 
granted any stock options during the year. 
 

6. Annual Return:  
 

A copy of the Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 
92 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), in the prescribed form, is 
hosted on the Company’s website www.hhclbajaj.com.  
 

7. Number of Meetings of the Board: 
 
During the year, 4 (Four) meetings of the Board of the Directors of the 
Company were convened and held. 

 
8. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 
 

Pursuant to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby state and 
confirm that: 
 
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed and no material departures have been 
made therefrom; 
 

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
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reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company for the financial year ended as at 31st 
March, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the said period; 
 

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013  for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 
(d) the Directors have overseen that the annual accounts have been 

prepared on a going concern basis ; 
 
(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls 
are adequate and were operating effectively and 

 
(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively. 

 
9. Details in respect of frauds reported by Auditors under Section 143(12): 

 
During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the 
Statutory Auditors or Secretarial Auditor to the Audit Committee or the 
Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

10. Declaration of Independence: 
 
The independent directors have submitted their declaration of 
independence, as required under section 149(7) of the Act stating that 
they meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of 
the Act, as amended and Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing 
Regulations, 2015’), as amended.  
 
The independent directors have also confirmed compliance with the 
provisions of the Rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications 
of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name 
in the databank of independent directors. 

       
11. Remuneration Policy: 

 
The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee had framed a Remuneration Policy which includes (a) criteria 
for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and (b) matters relating to the remuneration for directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees. The detailed 



 
 

 
 

Remuneration Policy is placed on the Company’s website 
www.hhclbajaj.com. 
 

12. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments: 
 

The Company has not given any loans/guarantees to any Body corporate 
or persons or other entities during the financial year. Information 
regarding Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is given in detail in the financial statements 
annexed to this Report. 

 
13. Related Party Transactions: 

 
There were no related party transactions entered into by the Company 
during the financial year which attracted the provisions of Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 as all related party transactions that were 
entered into by the Company during the year were on an arm’s length 
basis and were in the ordinary course of the Company's business. Hence 
there are no transactions which are required to be disclosed in Form 
AOC-2. 

 
14. Material Changes and Commitments: 

 
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the 
financial position of the Company, which have occurred between the end 
of the financial year of the Company and the date of this Report. 
 

15. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & Foreign Exchange 
Earnings & Outgo:  

 
The Company being a Service Company and not having carried out any 
manufacturing activities during the year under review, and hence the 
Directors have nothing to report on 'Conservation of Energy' 'Research & 
Development' and 'Technology Absorption' as required to be given under 
the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
Further, there were no foreign exchange earnings and/or outgo during 
the year under review. 
 
Hence, Disclosures pertaining to conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, are not applicable to 
the company during the year under review. 
 

16. Deposits: 
 

The Company has not invited, accepted or renewed any deposits within 
the meaning of the provisions of Sections 2(31) and 73 of the Companies 
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Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, 
during the year under review.  

 
17. Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts: 

 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators 
and Courts or Tribunals during the year under review which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations. 
 

18. Risk Management Policy: 
 

The Board has laid down procedures for assessing the risk and procedure 
to be followed for risk minimization, including identification therein of 
elements of risk which may threaten the existence of the Company. These 
are periodically reviewed to ensure that Management identifies and 
controls risk through a properly defined framework. 
 

19. Corporate Social Responsibility: 
 

 The Company has not crossed the threshold limits as specified in Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the provisions of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 relating to CSR activities which need to be 
undertaken by a Company are not applicable to this Company. 

 
20. Performance Evaluation of the Board, its Committees, the Chairman 

and the Directors:  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has   
carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, 
and that of its Committees and individual Directors. The manner in 
which such formal annual evaluation was made by the Board is given 
below: 
 
 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Board, Committees of the Board 

and Directors were approved by the Board at its meeting held on 27th 
March, 2015. 

 
 Based on the said criteria, Annual Rating sheets were filled by each of 

the Directors with regard to evaluation of performance of the Board, 
its Committees and Directors (except for the Director being 
evaluated) for the year under review. 

 
 A consolidated summary of the Ratings given by each of the 

Directors was then prepared, based on which a Report of 
performance evaluation was prepared by the Chairman of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee in respect of the 



 
 

 
 

performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors during the 
year under review. 

 
 The Report of performance evaluation so arrived at was then noted 

and discussed by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
Board at their respective meetings held on 22nd June, 2021. 

 
21. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls: 
 
 Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements 
 were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
22. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:  
 

I. Appointment / Re-appointment of Directors: 
 

Minal Bajaj, Executive Director of the Company, retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. The Board of 
Directors of the Company recommends her reappointment. 

 
II. Key Managerial Personnel: 

 
In terms of provisions of the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri 
Bhushan Ashok Koli, Company Secretary and Shri Vijay Kumar Bohra, 
Chief Financial Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company.  

 
23. Board of Directors:  

Composition: 

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Rules made thereunder, the Company is required to have at 
least one third of the total number of Directors as Independent Directors 
and at least one Woman Director on its Board. 

As on 31st March, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company consisted 
of Four Directors, of whom two were Non-Executive Independent 
Directors, one Executive Woman Director and one Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director as per details given in the table below. The Board 
has no Institutional Nominee Directors. The Company has a Non-
Executive Chairman. 

 

Sr.No. Name of the Director Category 

1 Vinod Nevatia Chairman, Non-Executive & 
Independent 

2 Rakesh Gupta Non-Executive & Independent 
3 Minal Bajaj Executive 
4 Nikhil Tarkas Non-Executive & Non-Independent 



 
 

 
 

Number of Meetings: 

During the FY 2020-2021, the Board met 4 (four) times, viz. 30th June, 
2020, 14th September, 2020, 13th November, 2020 and 12th February, 2021. 
The gap between any two meetings has been less than one hundred and 
twenty days. 

 
24. Board Committees: 

 
(a) Audit Committee 
 
Pursuant to the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Audit 
Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held 
on 5th February, 2015 and subsequent amendments made in the 
constitution of the Audit Committee at Board Meetings held on 13th 
August, 2019 ,3rd February, 2020 and 12th February, 2021 with the 
following members: 
 

a) Vinod Nevatia (Chairman) 
b) Rakesh Gupta (Member) 
c) Minal Bajaj (Member) 
   

Number of Meetings: 

During the FY 2020-2021, the Committee met 4 (four) times, viz. 30th June, 
2020, 14th September, 2020, 13th November, 2020 and 12th February, 2021. 
The gap between any two meetings has been less than one hundred and 
twenty days. 

 
Vigil Mechanism 
 
Pursuant to the Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 a 
Vigil Mechanism Policy had been framed and revised by the Board at its 
meeting held on 30th June, 2020. The policy is placed on the website of the 
Company www.hhclbajaj.com. 
 
(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 
Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board at its 
meeting held on 5th February, 2015 and subsequent amendments made in 
constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at Board 
Meetings held on 13th August, 2019 and 3rd February, 2020 with the 
following members: 
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a) Rakesh Gupta (Chairman) 
b) Vinod Nevatia (Member) 
c) Minal Bajaj (Member) 
d) Nikhil Tarkas (Member) 

 
 

Number of Meetings: 

During the FY 2020-2021, the Committee met once i.e. on 30th June, 2020. 
 
25. Presentation of Financial Results:  

 
The financial results of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2021 have been disclosed as per Schedule III to the Companies 
Act, 2013.   
 

26. Indian Accounting Standards, 2015: 
 
 The annexed financial statements comply in all material aspects with 

Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

 
27. Statutory Disclosures: 

 
Disclosure of Particulars as required to be given under Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 
 
(a) The Company pays remuneration to its Executive Director. The 

Company does not pay any remuneration to its Directors except 
payment of sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of 
Directors and its Committees as a member thereof. However the 
Executive Director is not entitled to payment of any sitting fees for 
attending any of the meetings of the Board of Directors and its 
Committees as a member thereof. 

 
(b) The Company does not pay any remuneration to its CFO as he has 

been taken on deputation from a Group Company.  
 

(c) The Company did not have any employee whose particulars are 
required to be given by it under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the aforesaid 
Rules. 

 
(d) The details of the remuneration paid by the Company to the 

employees during the financial year as required to be given under 
the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 



 
 

 
 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are annexed to this Report as 
Annexure-A. 

 
A Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-2021 
is attached to the Balance Sheet. 
 
The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture 
companies. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, a Report on Management Discussion and Analysis is 
annexed to this Report as Annexure-B. 
 

28. Corporate Governance: 
 

As per Regulation 15 under Chapter IV of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
provisions relating to Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations 
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 
Paras C, D and E of Schedule V do not apply to the Company as the paid 
up equity share capital of the Company did not exceed Rs.10 crores and 
the Net Worth of the Company did not exceed Rs. 25 crores as on 31st 
March, 2021. 

 
29. Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace: 
 
The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the 
constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
There was no complaint reported during the year under review. 
 

30. Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) 
 

A. Details of the transfer/s to the IEPF, if any, made during the year as 
mentioned below :  

 
i) amount of unclaimed/unpaid dividend and the corresponding 

shares :  Not Applicable; 
 

ii) details of the resultant benefits arising out of shares already 
transferred to the IEPF : Not Applicable; 

 
iii)  year wise amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend lying in the 

unpaid account upto the Year and the corresponding shares, 
which are liable to be transferred to the IEPF, and the due dates for 
such transfer :  There were no unpaid/unclaimed dividend lying 
in the unpaid account upto the end of the financial year on 31st 



 
 

 
 

March, 2021. However, the following equity shares corresponding 
to the unpaid/unclaimed dividends which have been already 
transferred by the Company to the IEPF in the previous years, are 
liable to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF:  

 

Sr. 
No. Financial Year 

No. of Equity Shares corresponding to 
the Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividends 

which have already been transferred 
to the IEPF 

1 FY 2001-2002 351 
2 FY 2002-2003 559 
3 FY 2003-2004 253 
4 FY 2004-2005 100 
5 FY 2006-2007 40 

Total 1,303 
 
B. Details of the Nodal Officer 

 
The Board appointed Vijay Bohra, CFO as the Nodal Officer with effect 
from 1st October, 2019 for verification of claims and coordination with 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority.  
 
The details of the Nodal Officer are available on the Company’s website 
www.hhclbajaj.com. 
 

31.      Transfer of Shares to Unclaimed Suspense Account : 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 39(4) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule VI thereto, the Company had 
transferred 717 Unclaimed Bonus Equity Shares of 23 shareholders of the 
Company, in electronic form to the beneficiary account titled "The 
Hindustan Housing Company Limited - Unclaimed Suspense Account 
with Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd. in November, 2018. 

 
           Since then and during the year under review i.e. FY 2020-2021, no 

shareholders have approached the Company for transfer of shares from 
the aforesaid suspense account. 

   
Hence the aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares 
in the suspense account at the end of the year remain the same as stated 
hereinabove.              

 
The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful 
owner of such shares claims the shares. 
 
 
 

 

http://www.hhclbajaj.com.


 
 

 
 

32. Secretarial Standards of ICSI: 
 

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards specified 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and approved by 
the Central Government. 
 

33. Auditors: 
 
(a) Statutory Auditors:  
 
The current auditors, viz. M/s K.K. Mankeshwar & Co., Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106009W) were re-appointed for a 
second term by the members at the 80th (Eightieth) Annual General 
Meeting held on 2nd September, 2016 to hold office for a period of 5 
consecutive years until the conclusion of this 85th (Eighty Fifth) Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
As per the provisions of the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, no 
listed company shall appoint an audit firm as auditors for more than two 
terms of five consecutive years. Hence on completing the second term at 
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting, the Company can 
not re-appoint the current auditor viz. M/s K.K. Mankeshwar & Co. 
 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 22nd June, 2021, based on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s M. M. 
Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: FRN 
107122W/ W100672) as the statutory auditors of the Company subject to 
the approval by the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have consented to 
the said appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made, 
would be within the limits specified under Section 141(3) (g) of the Act 
and that they are not disqualified to be appointed as statutory auditors in 
terms of Section 143 of the Act. 
 
M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants will be appointed 
as the statutory auditors of the Company for a first term of 5 consecutive 
years from the conclusion of  85th  (Eighty  Fifth) Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 90th (Ninetieth) Annual General Meeting, on a 
remuneration of Rs. 1,60,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Sixty Thousand only) 
plus taxes thereon and reimbursement of actual/out of pocket expenses 
that may be incurred by the auditors in the performance of their duty as 
auditors of the Company.. 
 
The Statutory Audit Report for the Financial Year 2020-2021 does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 
made by the Statutory Auditor. 

 



 
 

 
 

(b) Secretarial Auditor: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the Rules made thereunder, the Company had appointed M/s Swati 
Nerurkar & Co., Company Secretaries, (ACS No. 18110 CP No. 8193), to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 
2020-2021. The Secretarial Audit Report for the year under review does 
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 
made by the Secretarial Auditor. 
 
The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the FY 2020-2021 is 
annexed to this Report as Annexure-C. 

 
(c) Annual Secretarial Compliance Report: 
 
The Company is not required to submit the Annual Secretarial 
Compliance Report to BSE Ltd. as prescribed pursuant to SEBI Circular 
dated 8th February, 2019 as the provisions relating to the Corporate 
Governance of the SEBI Listing Regulations are not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
(d) Cost Audit: 

 
The requirement of maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the 
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd. 
 
 
 
 
(Vinod Nevatia) 
     Chairman 
(DIN: 00059194) 
 
Mumbai:  22nd June, 2021  



Sr. No. Name of the Director / Key Managerial Personnel

Ratio of Remuneration 
of Director to the 

Median Remuneration 
of the Employees

% Increase / (decrease) in 
remuneration in the 

financial year

A Minal Bajaj Whole-time Director 0.64 Times NA
B Non-Executive Directors NA NA

5.00

D (6.89)                                     

E
11

Notes:
1

2

3

4

5 The remuneration paid as above was as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel is 3.71% while
average percentage increase in the remuneration of the Managerial Personnel during the financial year is
5.00%.

 'Permanent Employees' does not include trainees and contract employees.

Remuneration to directors does not include sitting fees paid to them for attending Board and/or
Committee Meetings.

The Company does not pay any remuneration to any of its non-executive directors. 

ANNEXURE - A

Key Managerial Personnel

% increase / (decrease) in Median Remuneration of employees other than 
managing director
Number of Permanent Employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st 
March 2021

Bhushan Koli - Company Secretary
C

Details of Remuneration under Rule 5(1) of the Company (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2021



                                 
Annexure - B 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis 

85th Annual Report FY 2020-2021 
 

Background  
 

The Hindustan Housing Company Limited (“the Company”)is a public listed Company 
incorporated in the Year 1934 and is a part of the Bajaj Group of Companies. The equity 
shares of the Company are listed on BSE Ltd. since the Year 1938 under Security Code No.: 
509650. 
 
The Company is a Service Company and it is presently not carrying on any manufacturing 
or trading activities. The principal business activities of the Company consist of rendering 
and providing various kinds of administrative and allied services and facilities to 
companies and entities of the Bajaj Group. Such services and facilities include Air-
conditioning Systems, General Administrative and other allied Services. 
 
The major sources of income of the Company are (a) Income received from rendering and 
providing various administrative and allied services and facilities as aforesaid and (b) 
Dividend Income. 

 

Financial Performance 
 

The Net Worth of the Company as on 31.03.2021 is Rs. 12.30 Crores (excluding Other 
Comprehensive Income). The Total Revenue and Net Profit (after tax) of the Company 
during the year under review were Rs. 5.02 Crores and Rs. 1.12 Crores respectively as 
compared to Rs. 5.50 Crores and Rs. 1.63 Crores respectively in the previous year. 

 
Risks and Concerns 
 
The current and future financial performance of the Company is linked to and is directly 
related to the services rendered as detailed above and dividend payouts by the listed 
companies of the Bajaj Group in which it holds its investments. The Company does not 
have any borrowings from any banks or financial institutions and neither has it accepted 
nor does it hold any public deposits. 
 
Since all the customers of the Company are companies and entities of the Bajaj Group, the 
Company presently does not have any risk exposure in respect of the services so rendered. 

 
However, at the same time, the Company is also totally dependent on all such companies 
/ entities of  the Bajaj Group for its business and any future change in their business plans 
to avail the aforesaid services and facilities from the Company might adversely affect the 
operations of the Company.  However, considering the nature of services and facilities 
rendered and provided by the Company to the Bajaj Group Companies, the Company 
does not anticipates any adverse impact on its operations in the near future. 
 
 



Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy 
 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company periodically evaluates the 
adequacy of the internal controls and processes, and ensures strict adherence to its laid 
down processes and procedures as well as to the prescribed regulatory and legal 
frameworkto manage and minimize the risk. The Committee further reviews the internal 
audit reports and effectiveness of the internal financial controls. 
 
Human Resources 

The Company recognises its employees as a critical asset of the organisation and lays due 
emphasis on all round development of its employees.  

Significant Ratios  

The key financial ratios of the Company for the current and previous financial year and 
details of the significant changes in these ratios, to the extent applicable, as required by the 
SEBI Listing Regulations are given hereinbelow: 
 

Particulars FY 2020-
2021 

FY 2019-
2020 

 % Change  

Current Ratio 16.12 9.81 +64.32%  
Operating Profit Margin  34.74% 44.50% -15.19%  
Net Profit Margin  26.28% 37.36% -29.66 
Debtors Turnover Ratio 9.52 9.17 +3.82%  
Return on Net Worth   9.07% 14.57% -37.74%  

 
Return on Net worth has decreased due to following: 

1. Decrease in Revenue from Operations and Other Income of the Company during the 
FY 2020-2021. 

Cautionary Statement 

Statements made herein describing the Company’s objectives and expectations may be 
‘forward looking’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results 
may differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a 
difference to the Company's operations include changes in government regulations, tax 
laws, economic developments and other incidental factors. 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
To, 
The Members, 
The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd., 
2nd Floor, Bajaj Bhawan, 
Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,  
226, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date, for the financial year 2020-2021 is to be read 
along with this letter. 
 
Management's Responsibility: 
 
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial 
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility: 
 
2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and 
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 
 
3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's 
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
Disclaimer 
 
5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 
 
6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books 
of account of the Company. 
 
7. The Secretarial Audit Report provided by us is solely based on the information 
provided to us by the company  
 
FOR SWATI NERURKAR & CO., 
Company Secretaries 
 

Swati Nerurkar 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 18110       Date: 22nd June, 2021 
C.P No.: 8193         Place: Mumbai 
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Form No.MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021. 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration o f  M a n a g e r i a l  Personnel) Rules,2014) 

  
To, 
The Members, 
The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd., 
2nd Floor, Bajaj Bhawan, 
Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,  
226, Nariman Point, Mumbai- 400021 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the Company in compliance with the 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd., (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd.'s books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the C ompany and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the F inancial Y ear ended on 31st March, 2021, complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the company for the F inancial Year ended on 
31st March,2021 according to the provisions of the : 

 
(i) Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the Rules made 

thereunder ; 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 

(iii)  Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder; Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories 
and Participant) Regulations 2018; 

 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the R ules and 

Regulations made thereunder if any applicable to the Company; 
 
(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed b y  S E B I  

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’) :- 

 
(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015 along with 2018 amendments.  

 
(c)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 
 
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

(vi)   Maharashtra Shops and Establishments (Regulation of Employment 
and Conditions of Service) Act, 2017; 

 
(vii)  The Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 

 1952 and the Rules made thereunder; 
 

(viii)  The Enemy Property Act, 1968 and the Ordinances issued by the 
Government of India. 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial 
Standard s i ssued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
I further report that:  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance 
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
 

The Company at its 83rd Annual General Meeting held on Friday, 30th 
August, 2019, had approved the appointment of Smt. Minal Bajaj as a Whole-
Time Director of the Company by passing a Special Resolution and 
inadvertently the Company did not file the same with MCA which was 
required to be filed along with e-form MGT-14 within 30 days of passing the 
Special Resolution.  
 
Accordingly, the Company has filed an application in e-Form CG-1 to MCA 
on 19th May, 2021 to condone the delay in filing the abovementioned Special 
Resolution. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if 
any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines, standards etc. 
 
In the view of the global outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, we had to 
rely upon the scanned copies of majority documents pertaining FY 2020-
2021 supporting our views in this Report. We make no representation 
regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described above, either for the purposes 
for which this certificate has been requested or for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
FOR SWATI NERURKAR & CO., 
Company Secretaries 
 

 
Swati Nerurkar 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 18110       Date: 22nd June, 2021 
C.P No.: 8193         Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: A018110C000504024 



 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Members of The Hindustan Housing Company Limited Report on the Audit 
of Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS Financial Statements of The Hindustan 
Housing Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended and notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
financial statements).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act,2013, as amended (the 'Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including 
Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit including other 
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 
 
Basis of Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ending 31st 
March, 2021. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate 
in our report.  
 
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual 



Report (comprising Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors’ Report 
including other information forming part thereof ), but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
    
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these  financial statements to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
The board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditors' Responsibility  for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 



or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 



disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of 
the Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 
 
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
 
c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account; 

 
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 
 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021, 
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act; 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in “Annexure B” to this report; 

 
g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

 
h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
given to us: 

 
i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 

2021 on its financial position in its financial statements; 
 

ii. The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting 



standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Company 
has not entered into any Derivative Contracts during the financial year; 

 
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 
31, 2021. 

 
 
 
 
GIRISH M. PATHAK 
Partner 
Membership No. 102016 
For and on behalf of 
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN- 106009W 
UDIN:21102016AAAAAY4779 
Mumbai, 22nd June, 2021  



"ANNEXURE A" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
(The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of The Hindustan Housing 
Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021.) 
 

(i) In respect of its Fixed Assets: 
 

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

 
(b) As per the explanation given to us, all property, plant and equipment have not been 

physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular program of 
verification designed to cover all items in a phased manner over a period of three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on 

the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable 
properties, as disclosed in Note 2 on property, plant and equipment to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company. 

 
(ii) The Company is a Service Company, primarily rendering various administrative and 

allied services. Accordingly, it does not hold any Inventory. Consequently, clause (ii) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon. 

 
(iii) In our opinion, and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act during the year. 
Consequently, clauses (iii) (a), (iii) (b) and (iii) c of paragraph 3 of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

 
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are 

no loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions 
of Section 185 and 186 of the act are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

 
(v) The Company has not accepted deposits from the public, of the nature covered under 

the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.  

 
(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not 

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the 
services rendered by the Company.  

 
(vii) In respect of Statutory Dues: 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods 
and Service Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 



appropriate authorities. There were no dues towards Investor Education and Protection 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Custom Duty, and Excise Duty during the year. 

 
(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed 

amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as on 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they become payable. 

 
(c) According to information and explanations given to us upon our enquiries in this regard 

and records of the Company, the Company has no dues that has not been deposited by 
the Company on account of any dispute. 

 
(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has no dues to any financial institution or banks. 
The company has not issued any debentures.   

 
(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 
(ix) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

 
(x) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair 

view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given 
by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the 
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

 
(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us by the management, the 

managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 

 
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is not applicable and hence not commented upon. 

 
(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standard. 

 
(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 
Accordingly, clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable and hence not 
commented upon. 

 
(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management the 

Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.  



 
(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the 

provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to 
the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
GIRISH M. PATHAK 
Partner 
Membership No. 102016 
For and on behalf of 
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN- 106009W 
UDIN: 21102016AAAAAY4779 
Mumbai, 22nd June, 2021  



"ANNEXURE B" TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The 
Hindustan Housing Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 
 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 
 

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and 
 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 
 
GIRISH M. PATHAK 
Partner 
Membership No. 102016 
For and on behalf of 
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN- 106009W 
UDIN: 21102016AAAAAY4779 
Mumbai, 22nd June, 2021 



I . 
1) 

2) 

II. 
1) 

2 ) 

3) 

THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2 0 21 

Particulars Note As at 
No. 31st March 2021 

ASSETS 
Non -Current Assets 
(a) Property Plan t and Equipment 2 123.40 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3 2,043.86 
(ii) Loans and Advances 4 76.45 
(iii) Others 5 30.82 

(c) Deferred Tax Asse t (Net) 6 -
Current Assets 
(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 7 935.88 
(ii) Trade Receivables 8 5 1.77 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 12.31 
(iv) Bank Balance other than (ill) above 10 0.30 
(v) Others 11 13.02 

TOTAL 3 ,2 87 .81 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
a) Equity Share Capital 12 6.09 
b) Other Equity 13 2,967.82 
Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 14 85.23 
(b) Provisions 15 105. 16 
(e) Other Non-Current Liabilities 16 47.2 1 
(d) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 6 13.45 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payables 17 4.08 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 18 53.94 

(b) Provisions 19 0.35 
(c) Other Curren t Liabilities 20 4.48 

TOTAL 3 ,287.81 
Significant Accounting Policies 1 

Notes: The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

Glrish M. Pathak 
Partner 
Membership NO.102016 
For & on Behalf of 
K K MANKESHWAR & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration NO.I06009W 

Mumbai: 22nd June , 202 1 

Vinod Nevatia 
Chairman 

Vijay Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 
As at 

31st March 2 0 2 0 

156.89 

1,065.33 
77.45 
30 .80 

3 .54 

806 .30 
37 .37 

1.81 
0.10 

20.39 

2,199.98 

6.09 
1,876.46 

99. 63 
93.10 
36.40 

-

5.2 1 
58.22 
11.90 
12.97 

2,199.98 

Minai Bajaj 
Executive Director 

Bhushan Koli 
Company Secretary 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 

Particulars 

Operations 

I ~,:!~~v.e~ Benefits Expense 
II Costs 

and Amor tisation Exp enses 

exceptional items and t ax ( III - IV ) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeas urement of employee benefit plans 
Less: Tax relating to above items 

XII I Elorr.in.gs Pe r Share 
Basic 
Diluted 

23 
24 
2 

26 

29 
26 

28 

147.34 
7.79 

35.06 

460.92 
460.9 2 

Notes: The accompanying notes form an integral part of th e Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

Girlsh M. Pa thak 
Partner 
Membership No. 1 020 16 
For & on Behalf of 
K K MANKESHWAR & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registra tion No.1 06009W 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 

Vinod Nevatia 
Ch airman 

Vijay Bohr . 
Chief Financial Officer 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 

MinaI Baj aj 

158.09 
9 .12 

35.45 

32.00 
(0.89) 

1.91 

672 .56 
672. 56 

Execu live Director 

Bhusha n Koli 
Company Secretary 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021 

A. E uit Share Ca Ital 
A. ilt 31st March, 2020 
Chiln e in e uit share ea ital 
AI ilt 31st Milrch 2021 
Refer Note No. 12 

B. Other Eaultv 

Balance as at 01 -04 -2019 
Add: Profit for the year 

Parllculilrl 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
(Lcss)/Add: Transferred o r from General Reserve/Reserve & Surplus 
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. 
Balance as at 3 1-03-2020 

Balance as a t 01 -04 -2020 
Add: Profit fo r the year 
Add : Othe r Comprehensive income for the year 
(Lessl/Add : Transferred or from General Reserve / Reserve & Surplus 
Transactions with owners in the ir capacity as owners. 
Balance 81 at 31·03-2021 
Refer Note No. 13 

Other Comprehenaive 
General Re.erve Income 

681.50 1,395.46 

(629.9 1) 

681.50 765.55 

681.50 765.55 
- -

978.53 
418.50 

1 100.00 1744.08 

Notes: The accompanying notes fonn an integral part of the Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date. 

Girls h M. Pathak 
Partner 
Membership No.102016 
For & on Behalf of 
K K MANKESHWAR & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.1 06009W 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 202 1 

Vlnod Nevatls 
Chairman 

Vijay Bohr. 
Chier Financial Officcr 

Mumbai: 22nd June , 2021 

Rs.ln Lakhs 
6.09 

6 .09 

Surplu. in Profit and 
LOll Statement 

265.22 
162.76 

1.43 

-
429.41 

429.41 
111.54 

1.29 
(418.50) 

123.74 

Minai Bajaj 
Executive Dircctor 

BhUlhiln Koll 
Company Secretary 

(Rsjn lakhs 

Total 

2,342.18 
162.76 

(628.48) 

-
1876.46 

1,876.46 
111.54 
979.82 

2967.82 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH,2021 

(Rs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars Year Ended 31st March 2021 Yea r Ended 31st Ma rch 2020 

A. Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities 
Net Profit before Tax 160. 17 193.87 
Add back : 
a) Depreciation Charge 35.06 35.45 
b) Unwind ing of (nterest 7.79 9.12 

203.02 238.44 
203.02 238.44 

Deduct 
a) Dividend Income 49 .20 
b) (nterest Income 0.31 0.56 
c) Other Income 1.28 
d) Profit on Sale of Mutual Fund Investment 69.58 57.8 1 

171.17 1107.57 
Operating Cash Profit before Working capital changes 131.85 130.87 
Add I (Deduct) : 

aJ Increase I (Decrease) in Trade PayabIes and Provisions 123.04) 11.60) 
bl (Increase) I Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 

(13 .52) 0.49 and provisions 
J36.56 11.l! 

Cash Outflow From Operations 95.29 129.76 
Deduct : Direct Taxes paid 23.53 32.00 
Net Cash outnow from Operating Activities 71 ,76 97.76 

B. Cash Flow ari!.li og from Investing ~ctivities 
Inflow 
a) Interest received 0.3 1 0.56 
b) Dividend received - 49.20 
c) Sale of Cu rren t Investment 191.77 284.98 

192.08 334.74 
Outflow : 
a) Acquisition of Fixed Assets & Capital WIP 1.57 0 .66 
bl Acquisition of Current Investments 25 1.77 482.98 

1253.34 1483.64 

Net Cash flow from/(used) in investing activities 61.26 148.90 

C. Cash Flow arising from Financing Activities : 
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash I Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 10.50 (51.14) 

Add Balance at the beginning of the year 1.81 52.95 

Cash I Cash Eouivalents at the close of the veal' 12.31 1.81 

I The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) Statement of Cash Flows. 
2 Components of cash and cash eQuivalents is referred in Note No. 9 of the financial s tatements. 
3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company is given in Note No . 1 of the financial statements . 

This is the Cash Flow S tatement referred to in ou r report of even date. 

Girish M. Pathak 
Partner 
Membership No. 102016 
For & on Behalf of 
K K MANKESHWAR & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.106009W 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 

Vinod Nevatia 
Chairman 

Vijay Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Minai Bajaj 
Executive Director 

Bhushan Koli 
Company Secretary 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2021 

Note 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Background 

The Hindustan Housing Company Limited (,HHCL' or 'the CompanY1 incorporated in India is 
engaged in the business of rendering administrative and allied services . The equity shares of 
the Company are listed on BSE Ltd (Bombay Stock Exchange). 

II. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

(a) Basis of preparation 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS1 as notified by the 
Mi3nistry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
('Act1 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended 
and other relevant provisions of the Act, on accrual basis. 

This note provides a list of the s ignificant accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of these financial statements. These policies are applied consistently to all the periods 
presented in the financial statements. 

(iI) Historical cost convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the 
following that are measured at fair value or amortised book value: 

1) Certain financial assets and liabilities; 
2) Defined benefit plans - plan assets; 

(iii) Current/Non·Current classification 

All assets and liabilities, other than deferred tax assets and liabilities have been 
classified as Current or Non-Current as per the Company's normal operating cycle 
(twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are classified as non current assets and liabilities. 

(iv) Rounding off 

The financial statements are prepared in INR, which is also the Company's functional 
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh (00,000), except when 
indicated otherwise. 

(b) Use of estimates and judgments 

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are 
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience; 
Management's evaluation of the relevant facts, various other assumptions and factors 
(including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under 
the existing circumstances. Circumstances as on the date of the financial statements may 
differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. Differences between the actual results 
and estimates are recognised in the period in 'which the results are known/materialised. 

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, 
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing 
as at the reporting date. 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2021 

The following are items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates 
and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed . Detailed 
information about each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with 
information about basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial 
statements: 

a) Estimation of variable considerations in revenue 
b) Provision for employee benefits 
c) Provision for tax expenses 
d) Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment 
e) Valuation of investments 

(e) Property. plant and equipment 

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation; 
amortisation and impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition capable of operating in the 
manner intended. 

Subsequent costs are included in the assefs carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item willllow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de recognised 
when replaced. The Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the reporting period in which they are incurred . 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method and the useful lives of the assets for 
computing depreciation are calculated in accordance with Schedule II to the Act. 
Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal/discarding of assets is calculated 
pro-rata from the day of such addition or upto the day of such sale/disposal/discarding 
as the case may be. 

Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an estimated economic 
useful life shorter than that of its corresponding asset, the component is depreciated over 
its shorter life. 

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset's 
residual values and useful lives are reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant 
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ar is ing on de recognition of 
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
de recognised 

(d) Intangible assets 

Computer software 

Computer software are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and impairments, if 
any. The Company amortizes computer software using the straight-line method over the 
period of 6 years. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying 
amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2021 

(e) Cash Flow and Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect Method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks. The Company 
considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase 
of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be 
cash equivalents and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(fJ Investments and Other financial assets 

(i) Classification 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

(1) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive 
income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss) , and 
(2) Those measured at a mortised cost. 

The above classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 
The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its 
financial assets to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows 
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets) or both. 

(iI) Measurement 

For a financial asset to be classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost or 
FVTOCI (excluding equity instruments which are measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income(FVTOCI)), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI), on the principal amount outstanding. This 
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 
Financial assets with cash flows that are not S'PPI are classified and measured at fair value 
through profit or 10ss(FVTPL), irrespective of the business model. 

At initial recognition: 
The Company measures a financial asset at its fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI), or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) . Transaction costs of financial 
assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent measurement: 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on the Company's business model 
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset . The Company 
classifies its debt instruments into following categories: 

(1) Amortised cost: 

A Cdebt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are 
met: 
a) The asset is held within a bus iness model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting 
contractual cash flows) and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely 
Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. After initial 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2021 

measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost and 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the Effective 
Interest Rate IEIR) method. 

(2) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPLI: 

Financial Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are measured at fair value 
through Profit and Loss ego Investments in mutual funds. A gain or loss on a financial 
asset that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented 
net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/llosses) in the period in which 
it arises. 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets 
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if 
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {referred to as 
'accounting mismatch'}. The Company has designated investments in mutual funds (other 
than FMP) as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are 
measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(3) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): 

The Company measures its current equity inyestment i.e. Equity instruments which are 
held for trading, if any, at FVTPL and all other equity instruments at FVTOCI. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis . 

Equity instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as 
at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other 
comprehensive income lOCI). 

(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated 
with its financial assets carried at amortised cost for e.g, trade receivables and bank 
balances. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on trade receivables and all lease receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes 
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 
expected credit losses IECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events 
over the expected life of a financial instrument. Since the Company's business model is 
to provide administrative and allied services within the group companies reducing the 
credit risk exposure of the Company, the Company is able to generate its contractual 
cash (Jows within the operating cycle. 

However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to 
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any 
credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there 
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 



THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2021 

(Iv) Derecognition of financial assets 

A financia l asset is derecognised only when Company has transferred the rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial asset or the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset have expired . Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company 
evalua tes whether it has transferred substantially all risks a nd rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financia l asset is derecognised. 

(v) Reclassification of financial assets 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial 
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets 
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For other fina ncial assets, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing 
those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The 
Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of 
external or internal changes which a re s ignificant to the Company's operations. Such 
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when 
the Company either begins or ceases to perform a n activi ty that is s ignificant to its 
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification 
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 
next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not 
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) 
or interest. The Company applies amortised cost, where it has ability to demonstrate 
that the underlying instruments in the portfolio fulfill the solely payments of principal 
and interest rSPPI1 test and the churn in the portfolio is negligible. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

GoodwiU and intangible assets (if and when available) that have an indefinite useful life 
a re not subject to a mortisation and a re tested annually for impairment, or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. 
Other assets a re tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate tha t the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of 
disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for wh ich there a re separately identifiable cash inflows which are 
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash­
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffe red an impairment 
a re reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

(h) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions a re recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation a nd the a mount can be reliably estimated. Provisions 
are not recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured a t the present 
value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the 
present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the liabili ty. The increase in the provision due 
to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. 

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from 
past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of 
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resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made . When the 
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

(i) Revenue recognition 

(1) Income from rendering of services 

Income from rendering of services and related expenses are recognised on accrual basis 
in the year in which the services are rendered at an amount that reflects the 
consideration which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. The timing of when the Company transfers the goods or provide services may 
differ from the timing of the customer's payment. 
Amounts d;sclosed as revenue are net of goods and service tax (GST) . 

(Ii) Dividends 

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to 
receive payment is established and it is probable that the economic benefits associated 
with the dividend will flow to the Company and that the amount of the dividend can be 
measured reliably. 

(lill Other income 

The Company recognises income on accrual basis. However, where the ultimate 
collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to 
the extent revenue is reasonably certain and can be reliably measured. 

Ul Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees 
renders the related services are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the 
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

The liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the end of the reporting period using 
the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields 
at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the 
related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 

(iii) Post-employment obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 
(a) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and 
(b) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund. 

Gratuity obligations 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of Defined Benefit 
Gratuity Plan is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the 
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is 
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calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method in conformity 
with the principles and manner of computation specified in Ind AS 19, 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation, 

Gratuity liability for the employees covered under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, is 
contributed to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC), through "Bachhraj 
Employees Group Gratuity Scheme", Fair value of the Plan Assets, is reduced from the 
gross obligation under the Defined Benefit Plans, to recognize the obligation on a net 
basis, However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC as compared to the liability 
based on an independent actuarial valuation is recognised as a liability. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of 
the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, This cost is included in 
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement 
of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Defined Contribution Plan 

Provident Fund Contribution - Monthly contributions are made to "Bachhraj & Co, 
Ltd , Provident Fund Institution", (Trust) constituted for the benefit of the employees , 
The minimum interest rate payable by the Trust to the beneficiaries is notified by the 
Central Government, The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, 
between the return on investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate . 

Defined contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government 
Provident Fund Authority and recognised as expense as and when due. 

(k) Borrowing Costs 

Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalized, Other 
interest and borrowing costs are charged to revenue. 

(I) Taxation 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax 
Act, 1961; and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. The income tax expense or credit for the 
period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable 
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the 
extent that it relates to items recognised in other Comprehensive Income or directly in 
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other Comprehensive Income or directly 
in equity, respectively, 
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Deferred Tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the 
financial s tatement. Deferred income tax is de termined using tax rates (and laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences a nd Deferred 
tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, 
only if, it is probable tha t future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those 
tempora ry differences and losses. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent tha t it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to a llow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred 
tax assets, if any, are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will a llow the deferred tax asset 
to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
offset current tax: assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net 
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability s imultaneously. 

1m) Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to the equity s hareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per s hare, 
net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year a re adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. 
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nUL"'~ ... .LV ....... ..-_.L.LL."...... ... ~ ..................... I £ ~ ... ·~£ ~£~I 

GROSS BLOCK ( AT COST) DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

ASSETS As at Additioo 
(Disposal)1 As at As at For the (Dispos al) I As at As at As at 

01 ·04·2020 Adjus tment 31·03·2021 01-04-2020 Year Adjus tment 31·03·2021 31·03·2021 31-03-2020 

a) Tangible Assets 
Air Conditioner 60.57 0.44 · 61.01 2 1.63 11.55 · 33.18 27.83 38.94 
Building* 71.08 . · 71.08 18.14 1.13 - 19.27 51.8 1 52.94 
Computers 53.58 . 53.58 30.42 14.62 - 45.04 8.54 23.16 
Electrical Equipments 30.08 - - 30.08 11.81 2.03 - 13.84 16.24 18.27 
Elevators 10.64 - - 10.64 10.11 - - 10.11 0.53 0.53 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipmen ts 82.81 - - 82.81 75.20 2.56 - 77.76 5.05 7.61 
Office Equipments 19.47 - - 19.47 9 .84 2.59 - 12.43 7.04 9.63 
Security Equipment 100.56 1.12 · 101.68 95.54 0.06 · 95.60 6 .08 5.02 

Total Tangible Ass ets (A) 428.79 1.56 - 430.35 272.69 34.54 · 307.23 123.13 156.10 

b) Intangible Ass ets 
Computer Software 3.30 - - 3.30 2.51 0 .52 - 3.03 0.27 0.79 

Total Intangible Assets (B) 3.30 - · 3.30 2.51 0 .52 · 3 .03 0.27 0 .79 

Total (AI + (Bl 432.09 1.56 - 433.65 275.20 35.06 - 310.26 123.40 156.89 
Previous Year's Total 43 1.43 0.66 - 432.09 239.75 35.45 - 275.20 156.89 -

* Includes Rs.500/- (P.Y Rs. 500/-) being the cost of 10 shares in a Co-operative Society for Office Premises on ownership basis. 
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Note 3: Non-Current Investments 
{Rs.in Lakhsl 

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Particulars 
Nos .. of Shares Amount Nos. of Shares Amount 

a) Investments in Equity Shares (Quoted) 

Other Investments 
1. Bajaj Holdings & Jnvestmcnt Limitcd 15,391 506.73 15,391 276.97 

(Equity Sharcs of Rs.lOj- each fully paid up) 

2. Bajaj Finserv Limited 8,000 773.42 8,000 367 . 18 
(Equity Shares of Rs.5j- each fully paid up) 

3. Bajaj Auto Li mited 20,800 763.7 1 20,800 421.18 
(Equity Shares of Rs.I0j- cach fully paid up) 

Total 2043.86 1065.33 

Note; 
(a) Refer note I(f) for accounting policy on investments and note 32 for credit risk management relatcd to investments. 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
A/tRreRate amount of quoted investment at fair value (As per IND-AS) 2,043.86 1,065.33 
AJ!J!rc2.atc amount of Quoted investmcnt at cost lAs per Previous GAAP} 295.36 295.36 

Note 4 : Long Term LoaDS and Advances 
(Rs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Unsecured, Considered good 
aJ Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for Value to be rcceivcd 75.50 67.97 
b) Advancc Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 0.95 9.48 

Total 76.45 77.45 

Note 5: Other NOD-Current Financial Anets 
IRs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 

Deposits with Government authorities and others 28.75 28.73 

Income Tax Refund Receivable 2.07 2.07 

Tota l 30.82 30.80 

Note 6 : Deferred Tax (Liability)j Anctil [Net] 
(Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March. 

2021 2020 
Deferred Tax (Liability)j Assets on account of Depreciation 3.38 l.24 
Addj(1..ess): Deferred Tax Asset on account of Employee Benefits 7.55 2.30 
Add/iLcssi: Net Gain Fair Valuation 124.38 -
Total (13 .4 5 3 .54 
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Note 7: Current Investmenh 

Aa a t 31st March 2021 
Particulars 

No . of Units 
a) Investments in Mutual Funds (Unquoted) 

HDFC Floating Rate Debt Fund- Direct Plan- Wholesale Option - Growth 24,44,146 

Total 
Current Investments carried at fair value through statement of proflt or 108s. 
Note: For in fonnation on market price risk, refer Note No. 32. 

Note 8 ; Trade Receivables 

Particu lars 
As at 31st March, 

2021 
Trade receivables- Unsecu red, cons idered ~ood 51.77 

Total 51.77 
Current portion 51 .77 
Non-Curren t portion -
Note. For mformatIon on credIt fisk of trade recClvable, refer Note No. 32. 

Note 9 : Cash a nd Cash Equivalenh 

Particulars 
As at 31st March , 

2021 
a) Balances with Bank 

Curren t Account 12.11 
bl Cash on Hand 0.20 
Total 12.31 

Note 10: Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalenh 

Particulars 
As a t 3 1st March, 

2021 
Unclaimed Sus ensc Account 0.30 
Total 0 .30 

Note 11: Others 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 

2021 
Unsecured, considered good 
a) Loans and Advances to Employees 1.10 
bl Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind or for value to be received 3.36 
ci Duties & 'Taxes 8.56 
Total 13.02 

Amount 

935.88 

935.88 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 
As at 31st March, 

2020 
37.37 

37.37 
37.37 

-

(Rs -in Lakhs ) 
As at 31s t March, 

2020 

1.69 
0.12 
1.81 

IRs.in Lakhsl 
As a t 31st March, 

2020 
0.10 
0 .10 

IRs.in Lakhsl 
As at 31st March, 

2020 

2.15 
9.90 
8.34 

20.39 

(Rs.in Lakhsj 
As at 31st March 2020 

No. ofUnih Amount 

22,78 ,825 806.30 

806.30 
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Note 12: Equity Share Capital 
IRs. in Lakhsl 

Particula rs As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 
Number of Shar es Amount Number of Shares Amount 

oj Authorised 
Equity Shares of Rs. 25/- each 40,000 10.00 40,000 10.00 

b) Issued 
Equity Shares of Rs. 25/- each 24,53 1 6.13 24,53 1 6. 13 

c) Subscribed and Paid up 
i) Equity Shares of Rs. 25/- each fully paid up 24,200 6.05 24,200 6.05 
iiI Forfeited Shares IAmounts orie:inallv orud ~pl 331 0.04 331 0 .04 
Total 24531 6.09 24531 6.09 

Reconciliation of Number of Shares and Amoun t Outstanding: 

Particula rs As at 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 
Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount 

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 24,531 6 .09 24,531 6.09 
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Less: Shares bought back during the year 

Equlty Shares at the end of the ye ar 24531 6.09 24531 6.09 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs . 25/ -. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 
share. In the event of IiquidaUon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
the preferential amounts, in the proportion of the number of equity shares held by each share holders. 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company : 
As a t 31st March 2021 As at 31st March 2020 

Name of the Shareholder 
Number of Shares % of total Holding Number of Shares % of to ta l Holding 

il Sikkim Janseva Pratisthan Pvt. Ltd. 6,824 28.20% 6,824 28.20% 
ii) Bachhraj & Company Pvl. Ltd. 6, 152 25 .42% 6,152 25.42% 
il1LJamnalai Sons Pvl. Ltd. 2764 11.42% 2764 11.42% 
Total 15740 65.04% 1574 0 65.04% 

Note 13: Other Equity 
Ih;n Lakh,) 

Other 
Particulars Comprehensive Surplus in Profit 

Gene,.1 R.a. ",. I;'com. land Lo .. Total 

R, as at 01 -04-120 19 681.50 1,395.46 265.22 2 ,342 .18 
Add: Profit for the year - 162.76 162 .76 
~dd: Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (629.91) 1.43 

• ...1 ... : Transferred or from General Reserve/Reserve & Surplus - - -
, with ownm ;n the;, capa,;ty"' ownm. 

I , "' 01 68] ,50 765.55 429.41 

as at 01 -04 -2020 681.50 765.55 429.41 1,876.46 
~~~: Profit for the year - 111.54 111.54 
~dd: .Other Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year 978.53 1.29 979.82 

;o,f .AI Transferred or from General Reserve/Reserve & Surplus 418.50 - (41 8.50) 
, w;lh , ;n Ihe;, capaclIy "' owne". -

General Reserve reflects the amount transferred from statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act 20 13. 

Non-Current LiabiHties : 
Note 14: Financial Liabilities 

IRs.in Lakhsl 
A. at 31at March , As at 31st March. 

Particulars 2021 2020 
Securit De osits 85.23 99.63 
Total 85.23 99.63 
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Note 15: Provisions 

(Rs.in Lakhs l 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

Particulars 2021 2020 

Provision for employee benefits 
Leave Encashment 31.53 25.13 
Gratuity 73.63 67.97 

Total 105. 16 93.10 

Note 16: Other Non-Current Liabilities 

(Rs.in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Others· 47.21 36.40 
Total 47.21 36_40 
• Refer note No. 30 

Current Liabilities: 
Note 17: Trade Payables 

(Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Trade Payables 

Sundary Creditors (Refer Note 38) 4.08 5.21 
Total 4.08 5_21 

Note 18: Other Financial Liabilities 
(Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Security Deposits 8.03 20.63 
Bonus Payable 11.14 11.83 
Loans and Advances 31.92 19.05 
Liability for Expenses 2.85 6.71 
Total 53.94 58.22 

Note 19: Short Term Provisions 
(Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Provision for employee benefits: 

Leave Encashment 0.35 2.91 
Gratuity - 8 .99 

Total 0_35 11.90 

Note 20: Other Current Liabilities 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Other Liabilities # 4 .48 6.60 
Others· - 6.37 
Total 4.48 12.97 
• Refer note No. 30 
# Includes statutory dues, liability for expenses 
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Note 21: Revenue from Operations fRs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 

Sale of Services: 
Air-Conditioning Service Charges 35.08 29.28 
General Administration Service Charges 204.15 2 14.12 
Dining Room Service Charges 43.19 61.43 
Other Allied Services 141.97 130.82 

Total 424.39 435.65 

Note 22: Other Income (Rs-in Lakhsl 

Partic ula rs Year Ende d Yea r Ended 
3 1st March 2021 31st Ma rch 2020 

Interest Income 0.31 0.56 
Dividend on Shares 49.20 
Net gain on valuation and realiastion on mutual fund through FVTPL 69.58 57.81 
Gain on Fair valuation of Security Depos its 6.37 6.37 
Other Income 1.28 
Miscellaneous Income 0.16 0.0 1 

Total 77.70 113.95 

Note 23: Employee Benefits Expense fRs.in Lakhsj 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 

Salaries, Allowances, Bonus, etc. 105.24 116.09 
Contribution to Providend Fund 7.63 9.23 
Contribution to Gratu ity (Defined Benefit Plan) 5.30 5.70 
Contribution to National Pension System 2.76 3.36 
Staff Welfare Expenses 26.41 23.71 
Total 147.34 158.09 

Note: Refer Note No. 29 for information on Post retirement benefit plans. 

Note 24: Finance Costs (Rs-in Lakhsl 

Particula rs 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March 20 2 1 31st March 2020 

Unwinding Interest fOn account of fair valuation of of deposits) 7.79 9. 12 

Total 7 .79 9 .12 

Note: Refer Note No. 30 for information on fair valuation of deposits. 

Note 25: Other Expenses (Rs-in Lakhsl 

Pa rticulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March 2021 31st March 2020 
Advertisement 0.40 0.52 
Power & Fuel 24.29 29.05 
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note 25. 1) 3.26 3.04 
Director's Sitting Fees 2.55 3.05 
Maintenance and Service Contract Charges 9.70 9.58 
Compensation paid for use of Premises 3.00 3.00 
Legal and Profess ional Charges 3.74 3.76 
Housekeeping Charges 31.37 22.03 
General Administration Service Expenses 26,60 33.78 
BSE Listing Fees 3.00 3.00 
Repai rs And Maintenance 10.47 12.35 
Computer Maintenance Expenses 5.66 4.24 
Dining Room Expenses 3.04 5,98 
Internet Expenses 10.46 10.65 
Insurance 0 ,30 0.24 
Miscellaneous Expenditu re 13.89 8.80 
Total 151.73 153.07 

25,1 Auditor's Remuneration (Rs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st March 2021 31st March 2020 
Audit Fee 1.60 1.05 
Tax Audit Fee 0.80 0.53 
Limited Review 0.32 0.32 
GST Audit Fee 0.50 1.00 
Reimbursement of Exoenses 0.04 0.14 

Total 3.26 3,04 
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Note 26 : Estimation of current tax expenses and Payable 
Note :- - TAX EXPENSES (Rs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31st March 2 0 21 31st March 2020 

Current Tax 
Current Tax on taxable income for the year 33 .00 32.00 
Total current tax expense 33.00 32.00 

Deferred Tax 
Opening Deferred tax Asset/ (Liability) 3.54 3 .1 3 
Closing Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) (13.45 3.54 
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 16.99 (0 .411 

Total tax expense/(benefitl 49.99 31.59 

Tax in respect of earlier years (0 .92\ -
Total tax expense 49.07 31.59 

AI Reconciliation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income 
tax rate to the profit before income taxes is summarized below: 

(Rs .in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31st March 2021 31st March 2 0 20 

Effective income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 25.17% 25. 17% 
Profit before tax 160.1 7 193.87 
Current Tax expenses on Profit before tax expenses at the enacted income 
tax rate in India 40.32 48.80 

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in 
calculating taxable income 

Permanent Disallowances 
Allowable Expense under the Income Tax Act (10.26) (8.60) 
Expense Disallowed 13.75 14.26 
Tax in respect of earlier years (0 .92) -

Income exempted from income tax (1l.45) (24.52) 
Income tax on Long term Capital Gain 0 .1 8 1.32 
Deferred Tax Expense 16.55 (0 .89) 
Additional Provision for Tax made 0.46 0.74 
Tax effect of other Ind AS adjus tments 0.44 0.48 
Total income tax expense/(creditl 49.07 31.59 

Consequent to reconciliation items shown above, the effective tax rate is 25.17% 
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(Note No. 26 Continued ... ) 

BI The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
(Rs.in Lakhs) 

As at 1st April, AS at 31st 
2020 (Credit)/Charge 

Credit/(Charge) March,2021 
Particulars in Statement of 

Profit and Loss 
in directly 

Deferred Tax equity Deferred Tax 
(Assets)1 Libilities (Assets)/Libilities 

Depreciation (1. 24) (2 . 14) - (3.38) 
Provision for Leave Encashment (0.86) (7 .16) - (8 .02) 
Provision for Gratuity (1.44) 1.91 - 0.47 
Net Gain Fair Valuation - 24 .38 24.38 

13.54 16.99 13.45 

Particulars 

Note 28: Earnings Per Share fRs.in Lakhsl 

Particulars 
Year Ended Year Ended 

31st Ma rch 2021 31st March 2020 
Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profi t and Loss att ributable to 
Equity s hareholders ( Rs in Lakhs) 111.54 162.76 
Weighted Average nu mbe r of equ ity s hares used as denominator for 

24,200 24,200 
calculating EPS 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per s hare ( In Rs.) 460.92 672 .56 
Face value per equity share ( In Rs. ) 25 25 
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Note 29: Post Retirement Benefit Plans 
I) Defined Be nefits Plan 
1. Gratuity 
The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees 
wh o are in continu ous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity . The amount of gratuity on 
retirement/termination is payable to the employees on his last drawn basic salary per month computed 
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan 
and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India through tfBach hraj Employees Group Gratuity 
Scheme", 

2 . Leave Encashment 
The leave obligations covers the Companay's liability towards earned leave. The compensated absences for the year 

ended March 31,2021 is based on actuarial valuation amounting to Rs. 6,47,290 (March 31, 2020) - Rs. 3,43,613 

has been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss . 

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

As per Acturial Valuation as on 31st March 20 2 1, and 31st Ma rch 202 0 a nd recognised in 
the financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes: 
A. Amount reco2:nised in the Balance Sheet IRs .in Lakhsl 

As a t 31st March, As a t 31s t March, 
Particulars 202 1 2 0 2 0 
Gratuity: 

Present Value of Plan Liabilities* 73.63 76 .95 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 75 .50 67.97 
Deficit7lSun,luSl of funded plans (1.87 8.98 
Un funded Plans 
Net Plan liabllitV(Asse tSl (1.87 8 .98 
Classification: 

Current Liabil ity - 8.98 
Non Current Liability 73 .63 67 .97 

Total 73.63 76.95 

Leave Encashment: 
Present Value of Plan Lia bilities* 31.88 28.04 
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Deficit / fSurnlusl of funded Dlans 31.88 28.04 
Unfunded Plans - -
Ne t Plan liabllitv fAssetsl 31.88 2 8.04 
Classification: 

Current Liability 0 .35 2.9 1 
Non Current Liabilitv 31.53 25.13 

Total 31.88 28.04 

*The plan liabilities are calculated u sing a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets 

underperform this yield, it will create a deficit 



THE illNDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 

(Note No. 29 Continued ... ) 
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Gratuity: 
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Plan Assets Plan Liabilities Net Plan Assets Plan Liabilities Net 
As at 1st April 67.97 76.95 8.98 64.05 69.24 5.19 
Current Service Cost - 5.19 5.19 - 5.32 5.32 
Adjustment to opening fair value of plan asset 0.30 - (0.30) - - -
Employee Contributions - - - - - -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (0 .08) - 0.08 (0.77) - 0.77 
Interest Income 4.73 - (4.73) 4.69 - (4.69) 
Interest Cost - 4.84 4.84 - 5.07 5.07 
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in 
demographic assumptions - - - - - -
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in financial 
assumptions - 1.88 1.88 - 1.90 1.90 
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in 
experience adjustments - (3.69) (3.69) - (4.58) (4.58) 
Employer contributions 14.12 - (14.12) - - -
Benefit payments (11.54\ {11. 54 - - - -
As at 31st March 75.50 73.63 (1.87) 67.97 76.95 8.98 

Leave Encashment 
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020 

Plan Assets Plan Liabilities Net Plan Assets Plan Liabilities Net 
As at 1st April - 28 .04 28.04 - 27.02 27.02 
Current Service Cost - 9.02 9.02 - 7.62 7.62 
Adjustment to opening fair value of plan asset - - -
Employee Contributions - (2.63) (2.63) - (2.42) (2.42) 
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - - - - -
Interest Income - - - - - -
Interest Cost - 1.82 1.82 - 1.89 1.89 
Acturial (gain) / loss arising from changes in 
demographic assumptions - - - - - -
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in financial 
assumptions - 1.10 1.10 - 0.94 0.94 
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in 
experience adjustments - (5.47) (5.47) - (7.01) (7 .01) 
Employer contributions - - - - - -
Benefit payments - - - - - -
As at 31st March - 31.88 31.88 - 28.04 28.04 
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(Note No. 29 Continued ... ) 
(Rs.in Lakhs) 

C. Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits expense 

Gratuity: 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 

Current Service cost 5.19 5.32 
Finance cost/ (income) 0.11 0 .38 
Asset/ (Liabilities) recognised in Balance Sheet - -
Net impact on the Profit I (Loss) before tax 5 .30 5.70 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 
Return on plan assets exc1using net interest 0.08 0.77 
Acturial (gain) /loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Acturial (gain)jloss arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.88 1.90 
Actu rial (gain)j loss arising from changes in experience adjustments (3 .69) (4.58) 
Reimbursement - -
Benefit Plan Liabilities 

Net (gain)/loss recognised other comprehensive income before tax (1.73) (1 .91) 

Total Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 3.57 3.79 

Leave Encashment 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2021 2020 
Current Service cost 9.02 7.62 
Finance cost/ (income) 1.82 1.89 
Actuaria l gain or loss recognised for the period (4.37) (6.07) 
Asset/{Liabilities) recognised in Balance Sheet 
Net impact on the Profit I (Loss) before tax 6.47 3.44 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 
Acturial {Gain)/loss from previous period - -

Asset limit effect - -
Return on p lan assets exclusing acturial return on plan assets - -
Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain) /Loss from previous period - -
Total Actuarial fGalnl/Loss recol!nized in fOCI) 

Asset In ormat on-Gratu tv 
Particulars Total Amount arget Allocation (% 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - -

Gratuity Fund (Lie of India) 73.63 100% 
Debt Security - Government Bond - -

Equity Securities - Corporate Debt Securities - -

Other Insurance Contracts (LIC of India) - -
Property - -

Total Itemized Assets 73.63 100% 

Assumptions 

Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2021 2020 

IALM(2006-08) Ult . 
Mortality IALM(2006-08) Ult . 

Interest / Discount Rate 6.32% 6.80% 
Rate of increase in compensation # 12 .00% 12.00% 
Annual increase in healthcare costs - -
Future Changes in maximum state h ealth care benefits - -

Expected average remaining service 12.40 12.06 
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years 

Employee Attrition Rate 0.8% for a ll ages 0.8% for a ll aRes 
# takes mto account the mflation, semorIty, promotIons and other relevant factors. 



...... .... ~ .. ~ .. .. L 

As at 3 1st March 2021 
Particulars DR: Discount Rate I ER: Salary E scalation Rate 

PVO DR + 1% PVODR-1% l PVOER + 1% l PVOER - 1% 
Present Value of ObliJ:!:ation {PVO}· {Rs.} 69.85 77.97 77.68 70.01 

As at 31st March, 2020 
Particulars DR: Discount Rate I ER: Salary Escalation Rate 

PVODR+ 1% PVODR-l% PVO ER+ 1% PVOER - l% 
Present Value of Oblie:ation PV01- Rs.l 73.41 80.96 80.71 73.55 

r\'>'>t:~ ...... l<;1.IJUl1 'vIJU1 d..ll'>VU'> 

Year 31.03.2017 31.3.2018 31.03.20 19 3 1.03.2020 3 1.03 .2021 
PVO at end of p eriod 64 .43 71.83 69.24 76.95 73.63 
Plan Assets 46.66 55.40 64.05 67.97 75.50 
Surplus / (Deficit) 117.76 16.42 5.19 8.99 1.87 
Experience ad'ustments on plan assets 0.03 0.55 0.43 0.7 0.081 

The sens itivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representative of 

the actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption , the method used to calculate the 

liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period 

.&:I .... .......................... n.;;> . ...... .a...G.A.I.'~ 

As at 3 1st March, 2021 

Year Expecte d Outgo Expected Outgo Expecte d Expecte d Outgo Expected Outgo Expe cted Outgo 
Firs t Second Outgo Third Fourth Fifth Six to Ten Years 

PVO Payouts (Rs.) 0.87 18.81 17.51 4.77 0 .55 30.62 

As at 31st March 2020 

Year Expe cte d Outgo Expe cted Outgo Expe cte d Expe c t ed Out go Expect e d Out go Ex pecte d Outgo 
Firs t Second Outgo Third Fourth Fifth Six to Ten Yea rs 

PVO Payouts IRs.} 12.29 0.86 18.17 18.42 4.59 29.94 

n ) Defined Contribution Plans 

The Com pany also has certain defined contribution plan. Monthly contributions at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per the regulations are made to "Bachhraj & Co. Ltd. Provident Fund Institution", 
(Trust) con stituted for the benefit of the employees. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return on investment s of the Trust and the notified interest rate . 
The expen se recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 7,63,124 (3 1st March, 2020 - Rs. 9,22,589) 
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Note 30: Estimation of fair value of interest free deposits 
The security deposits received are to be repaid in cash over a definite period of years. As per Indian Accounting Standard 109 

("Ind AS 109").- "Financial Instruments", all financial assets and liabilities are required to be recognised at fair value. Since these 

security deposits are refundable in cash, they would generally meet the definition of financial asset under Ind AS 109. As these 

security deposits are interest free, the difference between the deposit amount and its fair value is to be treated as Deffered 

Income which is then recognised as Income in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the tenure of the deposit 

as additional lease income. On a related note, interest is accreted on the fair value recogn ized on inception to bring th e fair value 

to the deposit amount that will be repaid. 

Note 31 : Fair Value Measurement 
Financial Instrument by category and hierarchy: 

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 

recognised and m easured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 

statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified 

its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Accounting Standard. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other s hort term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities 

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these in struments. 

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters su ch as 

interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for 

expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly. fair value of such instruments is not materially different from their carrying 

amounts. The fair values for security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending ra te . They 

are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter party 

credit risk. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation 
technique: 
Levell: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly. 

Level 3: Techniques which u se inputs that have a sign ificant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observa ble 
market data. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March 2 0 21' (Rs in Lakhs) 

Financial Assets Financial. Liabilities 

Particulars Equity Instruments Mutual Funds Inte rest Free Security deposits 
Note No.: 3 7 14 

Non Current 2,043.86 · 85.23 
Current · 935.88 8.03 
Total 2,043.86 935.88 93.26 

Levell · 935.88 · 

Leve12 · · · 

Routed through Profit and Loss Level 3 · · 93.26 
Levell 2,043 .86 · · 

Level 2 · · · 

Routed Through Qel Level 3 · · · 

Levell · · · 

Level 2 · · · 

Carried at Amortised Cost Level 3 · · · 

Grand Total 2,043.86 935.88 93.26 
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INote No. 31 Continued ... ) 

Financial Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March 2020' 

Financial Assets Financial Liabilities 

Particulars Equity Instruments Mutual Funds Interest Free Security deposits 
Note No.: 3 7 14 

Non Current 1,065.33 - 99.63 
Current - 806.30 20.63 
Total 1,065.33 806.30 120.26 

Levell - 806.30 -
Level 2 - - -

Routed through Profit and Loss Level 3 - - 120.26 
Levell 1,065.33 - -
Level 2 - - -

Routed Through DCI Level 3 - - -

Levell - - -
Level 2 - - -

Carried at Amortised Cost Level 3 - - -
Grand Total 1,065.33 806.30 120.26 

Note: 

The Company does not have any interest rate risk as it has no borrowings. As such, the interest rate sensitivity and exposure to 
interest rate risk has not been dislcosed. 
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Note 32: Financial Risk Management 

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company's approach to 
addressing risks is comprehensive and includes periodic review of such risks and a 
framework for mitigating and reporting mechanism of such risks. The risk management 
framework is reviewed periodically by the Board & Audit Committee. The Company's financial 
risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. 

The Board of Directors provide guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as 
policies covering specific areas, such as credit risk, liquidity risk and investment of available 
funds. 

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

• Credit Risk 
• Liquidity Risk and 
• Market Risk 

Credit Risk: 

Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a 
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations towards the Company and 
primarily arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, fmancial assets measured at FVTPL and trade receivables. None 
of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk. 
The maximum amount of the credit exposure is equal to the carrying amounts of these 
receivables. 

i. Trade and Other receivables 

In regard to Trade receivables, which are typically unsecured, credit risk is managed through 
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness 
of customers to whom credit is extended in the normal course of business. 

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each 
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company 
compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default 
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking 
information such as: 

(i) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, 
(ii) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty, 
(iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to 

the cQunterparty's ability to meet its obligations, 
(iv) Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same 

coun terparty, 

Financial assets are written off when there are no reasonable expectations of recovery, such 
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment . plan with the Company. Where loans or 
receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity 
to attempt to recover the receivable dues. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized as 
income in the statement of profit and loss, 

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual 
customers based on historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in 
which the entity operates, Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience and past 
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trends. Based on the his torical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no 
additional provision is considered. 

Ageing of Account receiva bles (Rs. in Lakhs 
As at As at Particulars 

31·03·2021 31·03·2020 
Not Due 5.24 2.00 

0·3 Months 30.81 25.93 
3·6 Months 15.72 9.44 
6 Months to 12 Months . . 

Beyond 12 Months and less than 2 years . . 

Total 51.77 37.37 

Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in 
credit risk. 

The Company has a policy to provide for any amount which is outs tanding for more than 12 
months from its due date if they are considered as doubtful. 

ii. Others 

Other than trade financial assets reported above, the Company has no other financial assets 
which carries any significant credit risk. 

Liquidity Risk: 

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are 'cash and cash equivalents' and cash flows 
that are generated from operations. The Company has no outstanding term borrowings. The 
Company believes that its working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements to 
meet the financial liabilities within maturity period. Additionally, the Company has s izeable 
surplus funds invested in flXed income securities or instruments of similar profile thereby 
ensuring safety of capital and availability of liquidity if and when required. Hence the 
Company does not perceive any liquidity risk. 

Net Working Capital in the Company and available cash & cash equivalent along with current 
investment: 

Maturity Patterns of other Financial Liabilities: (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31" March As at 31·t March 

2021 2020 
Net Working Capital Fund 950.44 777.66 
Which include 

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12.31 1.81 
ii) Current Investments 935.88 806.30 

Maturity Patterns of other Financial Liabilities: (Rs. in Lakhs) 
As at 31" March 2021 0·3 3·6 6·12 Beyond 12 

Total 
Months months Months Months 

Trade Payable 4.08 . . - 4.08 

Other Financial 34.77 11.14 8.03 85.23 139.17 
Liability (Current & 
Non Current) 
Total 38.85 11.14 8 .03 85.23 143.25 
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Maturity Patterns of other Financial Liabilities' (Rs in Lakhs) 

As at 31" March 2020 0-3 3-6 6-12 Beyond 12 
Total Months months Months Months 

Trade Payable 5.21 - - - 5.21 
Other Financial 25.76 11.83 20 .63 99.63 157.85 
Liability (Current & 
Non Current) 
Total 30.97 11-83 20.63 99_63 163.06 

Market Risk: 

Market Risk is the risk that arises from changes in market prices. The Company operates 
only in domestic market and considering the business operation, the Company does not have 
any significant risks that will materially affect its income. 

i. Interest Rate Risk: 

Interest rate Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company has no 
borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk. 

il.Price Risk: 

Market Price Risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to change in 
market factors. 

Exposure: 

The Company has deployed its surplus funds into various financial instruments including 
units of mutual funds, bonds, fixed maturity plans etc. The Company is exposed to price risk 
on such investments; which arises on account of movement in interest rates, liquidity and 
credit quality of underlying securities. The Company's exposure to equity securities price risk 
and mutual fund NAV risk classified in the balance sheet either at fair value through OCI or 
at fair value through Profit and Loss. To manage its price risk, the Company diversifies its 
portfolio. 

Sensitivity: 

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/ decreases of the SSE index on the 
Company's investments and Gain/Loss for the period. The analysis is based on the 
assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other variables 
held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index, 

Impact on Profit before tax (Rs. in Lal<hs) 
Particulars 31St March 2021 31st March 2020 

8SE Sensex 30 - Increase 5% 148.99 93.58 

BSE Sensex 30 - Decrease 5% (148.99) 193.58) 

Above referred sensitivity pertains to quoted equity investment (Referred to in Note 3 and 7). 
Profit for the year would increase/ (decrease) as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities 
and mutual fund investments at fair value through other comprehensive income and through 
profit or loss respectively. 

The Company h as invested its surplus funds primarily in debt based mutual funds and fixed 
maturity plans. The value of investment in these mutual fund schemes is reflected though 
Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the Asset Management Company on daily basis. 
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The Company has not performed a sensitivity analysis on these mutual funds based on 
estimated fluctuations in their NAVas in Management's opinion, such analysis would not 
display a correct picture. 

Note 33: Capital Management· Objectives, policies and processes 

The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity. The Company is not 
exposed to any regulatory imposed capital requirements. 

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating debt instruments (including 
through mutual funds) and money market instruments depending on economic conditions in 
line with the guidelines set out by the Management. Safety of capital is of prime importance 
to ensure availability of capital for operations. Investment objective is to provide safety and 
adequate return on the surplus funds. 

The Company does not have any borrowings and does not borrow funds unless circumstances 
require. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes of capital management during 
the year . 

(Rs in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31st As at 31-t 

March 2021 March 2020 
Equity 2973.91 1882.54 
Less: Tangible and other assets (Net) (20.40) 39.54 

Working Capital 14.56 (2 8.64) 
Investment in debt and similar 2979.75 1871.64 
investments 

Note 34: Particulars of the Firm M/ s. Agarwal Brothers 

The Company is a Partner (as certified by a Pa rtner of the Firm/Director of the Compa ny) in 
the firm M/s Aga rwal Brothers. The particulars of the firm are as follows: 

Sr. 
Partners Share of Capital as at Capital as at 

No. Profit (%) 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 
1 Shri Gauriduttji Mittal (HUF) 10 - -
2 Shri Govindramji Mittal (HUF) 5 - -
3 Shri Brahmaduttji Mittal (HUF) 10 . -
4 Shri Shankarlalji Mittal (HUF) 3 . -

5 Shri Vishwanathiji Mittal (HUF) 9 - -
6 Smt. Kantadevi Mittal 10 - -

7 Smt. Pushpa Mittal 3 - -

8 The Hindustan Housing Co. Limited 50 - -

Note 35: The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Mumbai (RPFO) vide his Order dated 
24 .09 .2013 had directed the Compa ny to pay Provident Fund dues amounting to Rs. 23 .55 
Lakhs in respect of certain contract workers, retrospectively w. e .f. 01.04.1999 onwards . The 
RPFO has fully recovered the said amount from the Company. The Company had preferred an 
Appeal again st the Order before the EPF Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (EPFAT). The Employee 
Provident Fund Appellate Tribunal (EPFAT) has passed Order dated 10.03.2016, setting aside 
the Order passed by the RPFO (Mumbai) and remitted the case back to RPFO (Mumbai) to 
dispose it off afresh in accordance with law. In the fresh proceedings which were initiated 
against the Company, the RPFC (Mumbai) vide his Order dated 27. 12.2019 has held that the 
provisions of the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 are 
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applicable to the Company. Pending reassessment by the RPFO, the amount so recovered has 
been disclosed under ((Long Term Loan & Advances", The interest and penalty, if any, payable 
thereon presently is not ascertainable. The Company has on 06.03.2020 filed an appeal 
against the aforesaid Order of the RPFC (Mumbai) before the Hon 'hIe Central Government 
Industrial Tribunal cum Labour Court No.2 and the same is pending. 

Note 36: Segment Reporting: 

The Company is, at present, primarily engaged in a single business segment of providing and 
rendering administrative and allied services and operates only in a single geographical 
segment. 

Note 37: Related Party Disclosure under Ind AS 24: 

(1) Relationships: 

a) Key Managerial Personnel 

Name Position held 
Minai Ba'a' Executive Director 

b) Other Entities/Persons: 

Names of the Entities: 
Bajaj Holdings and Investment Ltd. 
Bajaj Auto Ltd. 
Baroda Industries Pvt. Ltd. 
Bachhraj & Company Pvt. Ltd. 
Bachhraj Factories Pvt. Ltd. 
Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd . 
Mukand Ltd. 
Bajaj International Pvt. Ltd. 

#Name of the Persons Position held 
Vi nod Nevatia Director · 
Rakesh Gupta Director 
Nikhil Tarkas Director 
Bhushan Koli Company Secretary 
Vijay Bohra Chief Financial Officer 

Note: Name of the related party and the related party relationship where control exists have 
been disclosed only when there have been transactions with those parties. Related 
parties as defined under para 9 of Ind AS 24 "Related Partly Disclosures" have been 
identified by the Company based on representations made by key managerial personnel 
and information available with the Company and relied upon by the Auditors . 

#Details of sitting fee paid and remuneration paid have been given in the extracts of Annual 
Return in Form No MGT 9 appearing in this report. 

(2) Transactions carried out with Related Parties referred to in (1) above, in the ordinary course 
of business: 
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(Rs. in Lakhs 
Related Parties 

Nature of Transactio n Referred in 11a) Referred in lib) 
Above Above 

EXPENDITURE: 

Board Room Co mpensation 

Bachhraj & Company Pvt. Ltd. - 3 .00 
[3.00) 

INCOME : 

Services Provided/Rendered: 

Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd . - 7.84 
(8. 17) 

Bajaj Holdings & Investment Ltd . - 131.67 
(1 36.53) 

Bachhraj& Company Pvt. Ltd. - 63 .00 
(64.401 

Bajaj Auto Ltd - 23. 17 
(23 .18) 

Baroda Industries Pvt. Ltd . - 21.24 
(2 1.93) 

Bachhraj Factories Pvt. Ltd . - 24 .22 
(24.57) 

Mukand Ltd . - 10.6 8 
(1 3. 65) 

Bajaj Interna tional Pvt. Ltd . - 1.0 1 
(1.13) 

Dividend Received : 

Bajaj Holdings & Investmen t Ltd. - 0 .00 
(1 1.16) 

Bajaj Auto Ltd - 0 .0 0 
(37.44 ) 

Related Parties 
Nature of Transaction 

Referred in 11a) Referred in l ib) 
Above Above 

Reimbursement of Expenses: 

Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd. - 2 .39 
(2.23L 

Bachhraj & Company Pvt. Ltd . - 2.41 
(2.15) 

Baroda Indus tries Pvt. Ltd. - 0 .8 8 
[0 .67) 

Bajaj Auto Ltd. - 0 .11 
(0 .24) 

Bachhraj Factories Pvt. Ltd . - 0 .66 
(0 .63) 

Mukand Ltd. - 0 .0 3 
(0 .06) 
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Payable Deposits I Advances: 

Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Ltd. - 12.94 
(11.10) 

Bachhraj Factories Pvt. Ltd . - 13.15 
112.59\ 

Bajaj Holdings and Investment Ltd. - 25.66 
(38.57\ 

Bachhraj & Company Pvt. Ltd . - 30.14 
(29 .58) 

Bajaj Auto Ltd. - 0 .00 
J O.30) 

Baroda Industries Pvt. Ltd. - 4.12 
(4.95\ 

Mukand Ltd. - 0 .00 
(2 .55) 

Figures in brackets refer to the amount paid in the previous year. 

All figures above are net of GST. 

Note 38: 

a) "Sundry Creditors" in Note '17' to Account include (i) Rs .Nil (31.03.2020 Rs. 0.04) due 
to micro and small enterprises registered under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME) Act; and (ii) Rs.4 .08 (31.03.2020 Rs . 5.17) 
due to other creditors. 

b) During the year, no amounts have been paid beyond the appointed day in terms of 
MSME Act and there are no amounts paid towards interest. Further, there is no interest 
accrued I payable under the said MSME Act as at the close of the year. The above 
disclosure is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status 
of the suppliers under the MSME Act. The amount due to the micro and small 
enterprises is towards retention as per terms , 

Note 39: In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all items of Current Assets, Loans and 
Advances continue to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated 
in the Balance Sheet, unless otherwise stated . 

Note 40: Balances of Loans and advances, and Sundry Deposits are subject to confirmation 
and are as per books of account only. However, in the opinion of management, the 
reconciliation will not have any material impact on profitability of the Company for the year. 

Note 41: The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 
rules framed there under relating to Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives which need to 
be undertaken by specified companies are at present not applicable to the Company. 

Note 42: The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Codel relating to employee benefits during 
employment and post-employment benefits (Provident Fund a nd Graturity Act) received 
Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of 
India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The 
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any 

related impact in the period the Code becomes effective . 
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Note 43: Considering the nature of business of the Company and based on internal and 
external information available up to the date of approval of this financial statement, the 
Company concluded that there is no significant impact on its operations, arising out of Covid 
19 pandemic, requiring any adjustments in this financial statement. The Company is 
monitoring the future economic conditions . 

Note 44: Events after reporting period: There have been no events after the reporting date 
that require disclosure in these Financial Statements. 

Note 45: Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date. 
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Partner 
Membership No.1 020 16 
For & on Behalf of 
K K MANKESHWAR & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration 
No.106009W 

Mumbai: 22nd June, 2021 

Vinod Nevatia 
Chairman 

Vijay Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Minai Bajaj 
Executive Director 

Bhushan Koli 
Company Secretary 

Mumbai:22nd June,2021 
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Signed this _______ day of _______2021

Folio No. _____________

Signature of Shareholder(s)

1. ___________________
Signature of Proxy Holder(s)

1.___________________ 2._____________________ 3._____________________

Note: 

2. Notwithstanding the above the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the meeting by the shareholders 
present.

THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LTD.
(CIN: L45200MH1934PLC002346)

Registered office: Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021
Email: bhushan@bajajgroup.net.in   , website: www.hhclbajaj.com 
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PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L45200MH1934PLC002346

THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LTD.

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Jamanlal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021

or failing him / her

or failing him / her

I / We being the member(s) of _____ shares of The Hindustan Housing Company Ltd., hereby appoint:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 85th Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held
on 30th September, 2021, at 11.00 a.m. at Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Description

1.This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix Revenue 
Stamp of ₹ 1

Ordinary Business:
Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company for the FY ended on 2020-2021 and the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
Report thereon.

Re-appointment of Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 00338087)  who retires by rotation, as a Director of the Company.

Appointment of M/s M M Nissim &  Co.  LLP, Chartered Accountants  (Firm Registration No : FRN 
107122W/W100672 ) as Statutory Auditors of the Company
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THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LTD.
(CIN: L45200MH1934PLC002346)

Registered office: Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021

BALLOT FORM
(In lieu of E-voting)

Registered address of the Sole/First 
named Shareholder

No. of Shares held

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution(s) to be passed for the business stated in the Notice of 85th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held on, Thursday, 30th September, 2021, by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution(s) 
by placing the tick ( √ ) mark at the appropriate box below.

Description

In the event a member casts his votes through both the processes, i.e., e-voting and Ballot Form, the votes in the
electronic system will be considered and the Ballot Form will be ignored.

INSTRUCTIONS

Name(s) of the Joint Shareholder(s) If any

There will be only one Ballot Form for every Folio/DP ID/Client ID irrespective of the number of joint members.

In case of joint holders, the Ballot Form should be signed by the first named shareholder and in his/her absence by the
next named shareholders. Ballot form signed by a joint holder shall be treated valid if signed as per records available
with the Company and the Company shall not entertain any objection on such Ballot Form signed by other joint holders.

Where the Ballot Form has been signed by an authorized representative of the body corporate/Trust/Society, etc. a
certified copy of the relevant authorization/Board resolution to vote should accompany the Ballot Form.

Shareholders, who wish to opt for E-voting, may log onto www.evotingindia.com and follow the procedure given in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting which is also placed on the website of the Company.

85th Annual Report 2020-2021

Kindly read the instructions before filling the form. Only valid Ballot Forms received by the Scrutiniser by 5.00 p.m. on 
29th September, 2021 shall be considered.

Members may fill up the Ballot Form printed overleaf and submit the same in a sealed envelope to the Scrutinizer, M/s
Swati Nerurkar & Co., Company Secretaries, (ACS No.18110 CP No. 8193), C/o Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., 1st Floor,
Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400 059 or to her email:
swati@swatinerurkar.com, so as to reach by 5.00 p.m. on 29th September, 2021. Ballot Form received thereafter will
strictly be treated as if not received.

The Company will not be responsible if the envelope containing the Ballot Form is lost in transit.
Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms are liable to be rejected and the decision of the Scrutinizer on the
validity of the forms will be final.

The right of voting by Ballot Form shall not be exercised by a proxy.

Adoption of Financial Statements of the Company for the FY ended 
on 2020-2021 and the Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon.

Re-appointment of Nikhil Tarkas (DIN: 00338087) who retires by 
rotation, as a Director of the Company.

Appointment of M/s M. M. Nissim & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountants  (Firm Registration No : FRN 107122W/W100672 ) as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company

Signature of the Shareholder

Name of the Member (s)

http://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:swati@swatinerurkar.com,


Name/s of Shareholder/s

Folio No

THE HINDUSTAN HOUSING COMPANY LIMITED
Regd. Office : Bajaj Bhavan, 2nd floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.

(To be filled in if the proxy attends instead of the member)

Signature of the Shareholder/s or Proxy

Attendance Slip
To be handed over at the entrance at the Meeting Hall

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Eighty Fifth Annual General Meeting held at Bajaj Bhavan, 2nd
floor, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg, 226, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021, at 11.00 am on Thursday, 30th September,
2021

Name of Proxy (In Block Letters)




